
INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 659
REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING

Monday, September 25, 2023 ~ 6:00 p.m. ~ Regular Board Meeting
Northfield District Office Boardroom

Zoom Link

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Agenda Approval/Table File

3. Public Comment

4. Announcements and Recognitions

5. Items for Discussion and Reports
a. District Youth Council (DYC) Update
b. Superintendent State of the District Overview

6. Consent Agenda
a. Minutes
b. Gift Agreements
c. Personnel Items

7. Items for Individual Action
a. Activities Sponsor Partner Agreement
b. Proposed 2023 Payable 2024 Property Tax Levy

8. Items for Information
a. DYC Brunch

9. Future Meetings
a. Monday, October 9, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom
b. Monday, October 23, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom
c. Monday, November 13, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom

10. Adjournment

The Northfield School District recognizes that we reside on the homeland of the Wahpekute Tribe of the Dakota Nation.
We acknowledge the wrongdoings, previous and ongoing, and strive to repair and strengthen our relations with Indigenous peoples.

https://northfieldschools-org.zoom.us/j/89130745642?pwd=ZVBZRTRyVFUyUzZFT25iR3lpbGJPUT09


NORTHFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
MEMORANDUM

Monday, September 25, 2023 ~ 6:00 p.m. ~ Regular Board Meeting
Northfield District Office Boardroom

Zoom Link

TO: Members of the Board of Education
FROM: Matthew Hillmann, Ed.D., Superintendent
RE: Explanation of Agenda Items for Monday, September 25, 2023, Regular School Board Meeting

1. Call to Order

2. Agenda Approval/Table File

3. Public Comment
Public comment for this school board meeting may be made in person at the beginning of the meeting and must comply with the
district’s public comment guidelines.

4. Announcements and Recognitions

5. Items for Discussion and Reports
a. District Youth Council (DYC) Update. DYC members Connor Percy and McKenna Carlson will update the

board about their plans for the 2023-2024 school year.

b. Superintendent State of the District Overview. Superintendent Hillmann will present an overview of the
district’s strategic plan implementation, progress towards its benchmarks, and upcoming areas of focus. Dr.
Hillmann will also share the presentation at the Chamber of Commerce luncheon on Sept. 27.

6. Consent Agenda
Recommendation: Motion to approve the following items listed under the Consent Agenda.

a. Minutes. Minutes of the Regular School Board meeting held on September 11, 2023.

b. Gift Agreements. Gift agreements to be approved are attached.

c. Personnel Items
i. Appointments

1. Megan Bauer, EarlyVenture Teacher at the NCEC, effective 10/2/2023. Step 5 - $20.57/hour.
2. Robert Coleman, General Education EA at Spring Creek for 2.25 hours/day at Spring Creek, effective

9/13/2023 through 6/6/2024. Step 4, $18.05/hour.
3. Zoe Condon, Custodian at the High School, effective 9/27/2023. Step 2, $20.09/hour.
4. Chelsea Hinderscheit, Child Nutrition Associate I at Greenvale Park, effective 9/27/2023. $20.84/hour.
5. Amy Hales, Special Education EA/PCA at the Middle School for 3.5 hours/day, effective 9/25/2023. Step 4 -

$18.05/hour, plus prorated PCA stipend.
6. Jackson LeBlanc, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, effective 9/14/2023 through 5/31/2024.

$15.75/hour.
7. Emyla Lewis, Community School Club Leader at Greenvale Park, effective 10/2/2023 through 5/26/2024.

$24.30/hour.
8. Correction: Brian Link, Custodian at the Middle School - hired at Step 1. Further information received, change

to Custodian at the Middle School, Step 5 - $21.45/hour.
9. Parker Max, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, effective 9/23/2023 through 5/31/2024. $14.50/hour.
10. Jesse Olson, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, effective 9/23/2023 through 5/31/2024. $14.75/hour.
11. Trey Petersen, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, effective 9/21/2023 through 5/31/2024.

$15.75/hour.
12. Allyn Putnam, KidVenture Site Assistant on-call as needed at all elementary schools, effective 9/25/2023, Step

1, $14.90/hour.
13. Lauren Quinnel, Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek for 6.75 hours/day, effective 10/2/2023. Step 2,

$17.03/hour plus prorated PCA stipend.
14. Kelly Radtke, CNA I at Spring Creek for 3.25 hours/day, effective 9/25/2023. $20.84/hour.
15. Kaitlin Schulz, Event Worker at the Middle School, effective 9/15/2023.
16. Noah Schomburg, Assistant Director for the High School fall play, effective 9/25/2023.

https://northfieldschools-org.zoom.us/j/89130745642?pwd=ZVBZRTRyVFUyUzZFT25iR3lpbGJPUT09


17. Abigail Vanyo, Long-term substitute Early Venture Teacher at NCEC, beginning 9/21/2023 through
12/29/2023. Step 3 - $19.36/hour.

18. Karrie Vogel, Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek for 6.5 hours/day, effective 9/21/23. Step 4,
$18.05/hour plus prorated PCA stipend of $2,319.02.

ii. Increase/Decrease/Change in Assignment
1. Sybil Betsinger, .50 FTE Occupational Therapist at the NCEC, add .35 FTE Cultural Liaison District Wide,

effective 10/2/2023.
2. Erin Blanck, General Education EA at NCEC for 14.1 hours/week, change to General Education EA at

NCEC for 20 hours/week, effective 9/18/2023.
3. Russel Boyington, General Education EA and KidVenture Site Assistant, add Community School Club Leader

for up to 12 hours/week, effective 10/2/2023 through 5/18/2024. $24.30/hour
4. Lindsey Downs, Grade 1 Teacher at Spring Creek, add Community School Teacher for up to 8 hours/week at

Spring Creek, effective 10/2/2023 through 5/18/2024. $40/hour.
5. Ana Gallego, Special Education EA/PCA and General Ed EA at Greenvale Park for 7.25 hours/day, add

Community School Club Leader for up to 12 hours/week, effective 10/2/2023 through 5/18/2024.
$24.30/hour

6. Ellen Haefner, Parent Educator at the NCEC for 20 hours/week, change to Parent Educator for 25
hours/week at the NCEC, effective 9/18/2023.

7. Inger Hanson, EL teacher .50 FTE at the ALC and .50 FTE at Greenvale Park, change to EL teacher at the
ALC .55 FTE and EL teacher at Spring Creek .45 FTE, effective 9/18/2023 through 6/6/2024.

8. Beth Kuyper, Special Education EA/PCA at the Middle School for 6,75 hours/day, add .25 hour/day, effective
9/13/23 through 6/6/24.

9. Catherine Lovrien, WILL Program Teacher at the Middle School, add Community School Teacher for up to 8
hours/week, effective 9/28/2023 through 5/16/2024. $40/hour

10. Rebekka Schrank, Special Education Teacher at Spring Creek, add Community School Teacher for up to 8
hours/week at Spring Creek, effective 10/2/2023 through 5/18/2024. $40/hour.

11. Libby Stanton, ECFE Teacher for 20 hours/week at the NCEC, change to ECFE Teacher for 25 hours/week
at the NCEC, effective 9/18/23.

12. Heather Stanton Ims, 1.0 FTE Guidance Counselor at the Middle School, add Middle School Youth Center
Teacher for up to 8 hours/week, Monday through Thursday, effective 10/24/2023 through 5/16/2024.
$40/hour.

iii. Leave of Absence
1. Tyler Balow, FMLA leave of absence on or about 11/6/2023 through approximately 11/21/2023.
2. Jenelle Mullin, Child Nutrition Associate at the High School, extending the end of FMLA leave to 12/4/2023.
3. Ann Schmidt, Child Nutrition Associate at the High School, FMLA leave beginning on 11/16/23 through

12/3/2023.
iv. Retirements/Resignations/Terminations

1. Noelle Gilomen, Child Nutrition Associate, resignation effective 9/22/2023.

*Conditional offers of employment are subject to successful completion of a criminal background check and Pre-work screening (if applicable)

7. Items for Individual Action
a. Activities Sponsor Partner Agreement. The board is requested to approve the activities sponsor partner

agreement with Community Resource Bank as presented at the September 11 board meeting. Community
Resource Bank has agreed to pay $20,000 to be the sole sponsor of a new scoreboard at the district's
swimming pool. This will cover the entire cost of the scoreboard in exchange for ten years of advertising for
Community Resource Bank.

Superintendent’s Recommendation: Motion to approve the activities sponsor partner agreement with
Community Resource Bank as presented.

b. Proposed 2023 Payable 2024 Property Tax Levy. Val Mertesdorf, Director of Finance, will review the levy
certification timelines and analysis of the preliminary levy. The amount of the preliminary levy for 2024 is
$21,593,365.08 and represents a 2.17% increase over last year. This represents the maximum levy amount as
of this publication. The board, for many years, has certified the preliminary levy using the term “maximum”
because the final levy certification can be lower than the preliminary certification but cannot be higher.
Certifying at the “maximum” allows for flexibility should the calculation be higher than what is printed at the
time of this board action. The preliminary property tax levy for 2024 is required to be certified to the district's
home county auditor no later than September 30, 2023.



Superintendent’s Recommendation: Motion to certify to County Auditors the 2023 Payable 2024
Preliminary Levy Limitation and Certification at the maximum authority.

8. Items for Information
a. DYC Brunch. The District Youth Council is hosting a brunch for school board members on Saturday,

November 11, from 10:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m at the Northfield Community Resource Center.

9. Future Meetings
a. Monday, October 9, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom
b. Monday, October 23, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom
c. Monday, November 13, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom

10. Adjournment



DYC 2023/24
September 25, 2023



Our purpose is to facilitate connections between the 
school board and student body.
Insert Photo Here

2

● Three subcommittees 
devoted to equity and 
wellness, school board 
relations, and student body 
relations.

● Year-long projects and events 
to inform and lead the student 
body



- Ran multiple school-wide 
forums (budget forum, 
candidate forum)

- Continued to stock period 
products

- Created name change 
guide 

Insert Photo or Graph

3

2022-23 recap



Goals for 2023-24

- Equity and Belonging
- Culture Fair
- Continuing Menstrual Products

- School Relations
- Keeping school updated 
- Being a resource for information

- Board Relations
- Planning School Board Brunch

- Overall
- Strengthening connections from school 

board to student body 

4



Questions?

5





Strategic Plan

VISION
We prepare every 

student for lifelong 
success by 

developing critical 
thinkers who are 

curious and ready to 
engage in our 

society.



Strategic Commitments





District Benchmarks



Benchmark 
Progress 
Reporting

Slides include latest 
available data



No. 1 

All children ready for kindergarten

64%
All students

95%
District pre-school

100% (x2)

Early ventures



Nos. 2 & 5

connections & community

93%
5+ hours PreK

84% Grade six
Say Adults care

Community 
school



No. 3

Academic achievement
R

e
a

d
in

g
M

a
t

h
e

m
a

t
ic

s
 

M
a

t
ic



Outperformed 
state proficiency

 by 
double digits

Reading • Math • science



Big 
Nine

Conference
MCA Comparison

Tops:
● All students

Reading, Math, Science

● FRP
Reading, Math, Science

● EL
Math

● SPED
Reading



Grade Three reading

No. 21 of 316
↑10 ‘22 | FRP↑19 +20



Grade seven

📚 No. 22 of 315 » 93%
🔢 No. 29 of 315 » 91% 



NHS

AP

● 534 tests
320 students

● 76%
3 or higher

● 99 (!) AP
Scholars,
Scholars with honors, or
Scholars with distinction 



No. 4

physical/social/emotional well-being



NOs. 6 & 7 
goals, future vision, graduation

● 90% 
8th graders have a vision

● 95.9% 
grad rate 2022

● 21.8 
Average ACT score



Nos 8 & 9: 
Parent & Employee Experience

● Parent: 4.0 
five point scale

● 87% “I am treated 
with respect at 
this school”

● Employees: 3.92
five point scale

● 95.5% believe 
their work 
matters

● 87.86% indicate 
clarity of vision



No. 10: 
14% fund balance Goal

—————————

15.9%
—————————

2.17% Projected 
levy increase
(1.55% average increase 

over the last five years)



The legislature















Excellent Governance



What’s next?



“Public schools were 
designed as the great 
equalizers of our 
society - the place 
where all children 
could have access to 
educational 
opportunities to make 
something of 
themselves in 
adulthood.”

Janet napalitano





NORTHFIELD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
School Board Minutes

September 11, 2023
District Office Boardroom

1. Call to Order
School Board Chair Claudia Gonzalez-George called the Regular meeting of the Northfield Board of Education of
Independent School District No. 659 to order at 6:00 p.m. Present: Butler, Goerwitz, Gonzalez-George, Miller,
Nelson, Quinnell and Stratmoen. Absent: None. This meeting was open to the public, live-streamed and recorded, and
access to the recording was posted to the school district website.

2. Agenda Approval/Table File
On a motion by Quinnell, seconded by Goerwitz, the board unanimously approved the agenda.

3. Public Comment
There was no public comment.

4. Announcements and Recognitions
● The board observed a moment of silence for those victims of the Sept. 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and their

families.
● The district’s adult basic education program began offering free adult English classes on Sept. 5. More than

twenty people attended the first session.
● The Cannon Trophy, the symbol of the Rice County football rivalry between Northfield and Faribault high

schools, remains with the Raiders. Northfield beat Faribault, 39-0, on Friday night.

5. Items for Discussion and Reports
a. Elementary Schools’ Continuous Improvement Plan. Elementary School Principals Nancy Antoine, Scott

Sannes, and Sam Richardson presented to the board the continuous school improvement plan for the
elementary schools. The presentation included a progress report on the goals set for the 2022-2023 school
year as well as new goals set for the 2023-2024 school year.

b. High School Continuous Improvement Plan. High School Principal Shane Baier and Assistant Principals
Becca Bang and Rico Bohren presented to the board the continuous school improvement plan for the high
school department. The presentation included a progress report on the goals set for the 2022-2023 school
year as well as new goals set for the 2023-2024 school year.

c. District Safety Drill Update. Superintendent Hillmann reviewed the state-required safety drills and led a
discussion on the district’s “duck and cover” drill as required by new legislation.

d. Activities Sponsor Partner Agreement. The board reviewed an agreement with Community Resource Bank.
The bank has agreed to pay $20,000 to be the sole sponsor of a new scoreboard at the district's swimming
pool. Director of Finance Mertesdorf negotiated this agreement which would cover the entire cost of the
scoreboard in exchange for ten years of advertising for Community Resource Bank.

6. Consent Agenda
On a motion by Nelson, seconded by Goerwitz, the board unanimously approved the consent agenda.

a. Minutes. Minutes of the Regular School Board meeting held on August 28, 2023.

b. Gift Agreements. Gift agreements included in the board packet.

c. Boys Track & Field Non-Exclusive Cooperative Sponsorship with Arcadia Charter School. The board
approved the non-exclusive cooperative sponsorship with Arcadia Charter School for boys track and field
beginning with the 2023-2024 school year.

d. Personnel Items



i. Appointments
1. Elijah Allen, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours, effective

9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
2. Wilberto Arenas, Assistant Boys Soccer Coach at the High School for 2.5 hours/day, effective

8/14/2023 through 11/15/2023. $4,844.
3. Alix Bettin, On-call KidVenture Site Assistant over the summer, change to KidVenture Site ASsistant

for up to 15 hours/week at Greenvale Park, effective 9/5/2023.
4. Sherri Boese, Special Education EA/PCA bus route for 5 hours/week, effective 9/11/2023. Step 4,

$18.05/hour + prorated PCA stipend.
5. Riley Butcher, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023. $15.75/hour.
6. Alijah Cruel, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours, effective

9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
7. Tyler Dimond, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours, effective

9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
8. Daniel Dupay, 8th grade Assistant Football Coach at the Middle School, effective 9/5/2023. $2,691,

plus step 10.
9. Sean Finger, 9th Grade Football Coach at the High School for 2.5 hours/day, effective 8/23/2023.

$4,306 stipend.
10. Gabriel Fisher-Navarro, Recreation Instructor Assistant or Swim Assistant, effective 9/16/2023

through 5/31/2024. $14.25/hour.
11. Ana Gallego, Special Education EA/PCA at Greenvale Park, add KidVenture Site Assistant on

Tuesdays for 1.5 hours/week.
12. Giovanni Green, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.5 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
13. Jacob Halek, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023. $15.50/hour.
14. Matthew Hestorff, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
15. Grant Hutton, Recreation Site Supervisor as needed, effective 9/1/2023 through 5/31/2024.

$15.00/hour.
16. Kimberly Koahut, Community School Site Leader at Greenvale Park, effective 9/11/2023, Step 2,

$22.38/hour.
17. Jay Kuivinen, Recreation Lifeguard, effective 9/1/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.25/hour.
18. Grade LaCanne, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, effective 9/16/2023 through 5/31/2024.

$15.25/hour.
19. Cooper Long, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
20. Elijah Paton, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023. $15.75/hour.
21. Lorenzo Riley-Combs, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25

hours/day, effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
22. James Ryan, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
23. Bryon Sauvy, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023. $15.75/hour.
24. Grant Selchow, Recreations Instructor Assistant or Swim Assistant as needed, effective 9/1/2023

through 5/31/2024. $14.25/hour
25. William Skemp, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
26. Deonta Thomas, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead, Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
27. Veronica Thomas, Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek for 4.38 hours/day, effective

9/5/2023. Step 4, $18.05/hour, plus prorated PCA stipend.
28. Martavia Thrower, Recreation Instructor Lead/Swim Lead, effective 9/6/2023, $15.75/hour.
29. John Watkins, Recreation Building Supervisor, effective 9/11/2023 through 5/31/2024.

$18.39/hour.



30. Nic Zabel, Assistant Boys Basketball Coach at the High School for 2.5 hours/day, effective
11/20/2023 through 3/15/2024. $5,383 Stipend.

31. Lincoln Bramwell, Middle School Youth Center Site Assistant for 2 hours/day Monday through
Thursday, effective 9/28/2023 through 5/16/2024. Step 1 - $14.90/hour.

32. Lindsey Erickson, Event worker at Northfield Middle School, effective 9/13/2023.
33. Elleigh Flannery, Targeted Services Site Assistant at the Middle School Youth Center for 2 hours/day

Monday through Thursday, effective 9/28/2023 through 5/16/2023. Step 1, $14.90/hour.
34. Emma Hoelscher, Community School Site Assistant at Bridgewater for up to 12 hours/week,

effective 9/25/2023. Step 2 - $15.29/hour.
35. Brian Link, Custodian at the Middle School, effective 9/13/2023. Step 1, $19.63/hour.
36. Trey Peterson, Recreation Instructor Lead or Swim Lead on Monday/Thursday for 2.25 hours/day,

effective 9/14/2023 through 5/31/2024. $15.75/hour.
37. Bradley Prestemon, Assistant Boys Basketball Coach at the High School, effective 11/20/2023.

$5,383 stipend.
38. Samantha Shimota, .83 FTE Licensed Building Nurse, year round position at NCEC, effective

9/27/2023. ADN/LPN Step 4, $35.18/hour.
39. Jessica Toft, Special Education EA/PCA at Bridgewater for 4.0 hrs/day, effective 9/14/2023. Step 4,

$18.05/hour plus prorated PCA stipend.
40. Annie Welch, Community School Site Assistant at Greenvale Park for up to 12 hours/week, effective

9/25/2023. Step 2 - $15.29/hour.
ii. Increase/Decrease/Change in Assignment

1. Trish Beacom, Early Ventures Teacher at NCEC for up to 40 hours/week, change to Early Venture
teacher at NCEC for 40 hours/week.

2. Amy Boecker, Special Education EA/PCA at NCEC, add KidVenture Site Assistant at Greenvale
Park for 7.25 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023.

3. Amelia Brandt, KidVenture Site Assistant at Spring Creek for up to 40 hours/week, change to
KidVenture Site Assistant at Bridgewater for up to 26 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023.

4. Haanah Braun, EarlyVenture Site Assistant at the NCEC for up to 40 hours/week, change to
EarlyVenture Site Assistant for 40 hours/week, effective 8/28/2023.

5. Valorie Carter, General Education EA at Bridgewater for 2.0 hours/day, ending 6/9/23, change to
General Education EA at Bridgewater for 2.0 hours/day ongoing, effective 8/28/23.

6. Katie Casson, 1.0 FTE German Teacher at the High School, add a ⅕ overload in lieu of prep period
for the 2023-2024 school year, 173 days.

7. Vicky Chlan, 1.0 FTE Math Teacher at the High School, add Ski Club Chaperone, effective
8/23/2023 through 5/31/2024. $500 Stipend.

8. Anita Corwin, EarlyVenture Site Assistant at the NCEC for up to 40 hours/week, change to
EarlyVenture Site Assistant at the NCEC for 40 hours/week.

9. Lindsey Dietiker, CNA III at Spring Creek for 6.5 hours/day, change to Child Nutrition Manager I at
Greenvale Park for 8 hours/day, effective 8/28/2023. Salary changes from $25.24/hour to
$26.54/hour.

10. Claire Edwards, Special Education EA/PCA for 7.0 hours/day and KidVenture Site Assistant for up
to 40 hours/week at Spring Creek, change to Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek for 7
hours/day and KidVenture Site Assistant on call as needed, effective 9/5/2023.

11. Julie Erickson, EarlyVenture Teacher for up to 40 hours/week at the NCEC, change to EarlyVenture
Teacher for 40 hours/week at the NCEC, effective 8/28/2023..

12. Ilana Forsgren, CNA I at Greenvale Park for 3.75 hours/day, add KidVenture Site Assistant at
Bridgewater for up to 8.5 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023. Step 4 - $16.35/hour.

13. Sara Gerdesmeier, EarlyVenture Site Assistant at the NCEC for up to 40 hours/week. Change to
Early Venture Site Assistant for 40 hours/week at the NCEC, effective 8/28/2023.

14. Leah Grisim, Girls Soccer Coach at the Middle School - due to lack of participants, the girls soccer
program will not run for the 2023-24 school year. Leah has been reassigned to coach boys soccer at
the Middle School, effective 9/5/2023 through 11/15/2023.

15. Mariah Grisim, KidVenture Site Assistant at Spring Creek and Early Venture Teacher at NCEC,
change to an on-call status for both KidVenture and EarlyVenture programs, effective 8/28/2023.

16. Grant Hutton, Recreation Site Supervisor, add Instructor Assistant/Scorekeeper, effective
8/31/2023. Step 2, $14.25/hour.

17. Kailyn Ims, KidVenture Site Assistant at Spring Creek for up to 40 hours/week, change to Kid
Venture Site Assistant for 15 hours/week at Bridgewater, effective 9/5/2023.



18. Monica Irwin, Special Education Teacher and EA/PCA at Greenvale Park, change EA/PCA hours
from 3.55 hours/day to 3.80 hours/day, effective 9/5/2023.

19. Jill Keeley, EarlyVenture Teacher at the NCEC for up to 40 hours/week, change to EarlyVenture
Teacher at the NCEC for 40 hours/week, effective 8/28/2023.

20. Rylie Lager, KidVenture Site Assistant at Spring Creek on an on-call basis, change to KidVenture Site
Assistant for up to 15 hours/week at Bridgewater, effective 9/5/2023.

21. Briana Lanham, KidVenture Site Assistant at Spring Creek for up to 40 hours/week, change to
KidVenture Site Assistant at Spring Creek for 28.5 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023.

22. Quinn Line, KidVenture Site Assistant at Spring Creek for up to 40 hours/week, change to Site
Assistant at Spring Creek for up to 28.5 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023.

23. Jody Matthews, CNA I at Spring Creek for 3.25 hours/day, change to CNA III at Spring Creek for
6.50 hours/day, effective 9/1/2023. $25.24/hour.

24. Tonya Merritt, KidVenture Site Lead at Spring Creek for up to 40 hours/week, change to KidVenture
Site Lead at Bridgewater for 35 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023.

25. Lacey Neuman Bissonnette, KidVenture Site Lead on call as needed at Spring Creek Elementary,
change to KidVenture Site Lead at Greenvale Park for 35 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023.

26. Belen Ocampo, EarlyVenture Teacher at the NCEC for up to 40 hours/week, change to
EarlyVenture Teacher at the NCEC for 40 hours/week, effective 8/28/2023.

27. Nicole Rasmussen, KidVenture Site Assistant for up to 40 hours/week at Spring Creek and
Bridgewater, change to KidVenture Site Assistant for up to 10 hours/week at Bridgewater, effective
9/5/2023. Nicole also works at Bridgewater as a Special Education EA/PCA.

28. Kelli Rehbein, EarlyVenture Teacher at the NCEC for up to 40 hours/week, change to EarlyVenture
Teacher for 40 hours/week, effective 8/28/2023.

29. Angie Schewe, Early Venture Teacher at the NCEC for 40 hours/week, change to EarlyVenture
Teacher on call as needed with both EarlyVentures and KidVentures, effective 8/28/2023.

30. Grant Selchow, Recreation Instructor Assistant, add Recreation Site Lead, Step 2, $15.25/hour.
31. Melissa Spitzack, Grade 3 Teacher at Spring Creek, add Recreation Building Supervisor as needed,

effective 8/29/2023, $18.39/hour.
32. Veronica Thomas, Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek for 4.63 hours/day, add a Special

Education EA/PCA bus route for 3 hours/week, effective 9/5/2023 through 6/6/2024.
33. Veronica Thomas, Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek for 4.63 hours/day and bus route for

3 hours/week, add Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek for 4.74 hours/week, effective
9/7/2023.

34. Veronica Thomas, Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek and bus route EA, add .25 hours/day
general education supervisory time, effective 9/5/2023.

35. John Watkins, Recreation Building Supervisor, add Recreation Site Supervisor, Step 6, $16.25/hour,
and Game Official, $30/game, effective 9/6/2023 through 5/31/2024.

36. Liz A. Winter, EarlyVenture Teacher at the NCEC for up to 40 hours/week, change to EarlyVenture
Teacher for 40 hours/week, effective 8/28/2023.

37. Cori Yamry, Middle School Girls Volleyball Coach, due to lack of participants, the program will not
run for the 2023-24 school year.

38. Russel Boyington, General Education EA and KidVenture Site Assistant, add Community School
Club Leader for 8 hours/week, effective 10/2/2023 through 5/17/2024. $24.30/hour.

39. Rikki Drewitz, Special Education EA/PCA at the Middle School, add Targeted Services Youth
Center Site Assistant at the Middle School, effective 9/28/2023 through 5/16/2023. Step 2,
$15.29/hour.

40. Ilana Forsgren, CNA I at Greenvale Park for 3.75 hours/day, change to CNA I at the High School
for 5.0 hours/day, effective 9/25/2023..

41. Kay Goodrich, Special Education EA/PCA at the High School, add Event Worker at the High
School, effective 9/8/2023.

42. Julene Johnson, Media Educational Assistant at the High School, add Pep Band co-advisor at the
High School for 25% stipend, effective 9/8/2023.

43. Karl Viesselman, Math Teacher at the High School, add Event Worker at the High School, effective
9/8/2023.

44. Tamara Wunderlich, Custodian at the Middle School from 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., change to 3:00
p.m . to 11:00 p.m., effective 9/7/2023.



45. Cori Yamry - correction - a PCN was previously submitted stating that Cori would not be coaching
Middle School volleyball for the 2023-24 school year due to lack of participants. There has now been
an influx of participants so Cori will coach Middle School volleyball for the 2023-24 school year.

iii. Leave of Absence
1. Stacey Garry, Special Education EA/PCA at Spring Creek, medical leave of absence beginning on

8/30/23 and extending on an intermittent basis through the 2023-24 school year.
2. Annie Breyer, Special Education EA/PCA at Bridgewater, medical leave of absence beginning

9/11/2023.
3. Tiffany Kortbein, Kindergarten Teacher at Greenvale Park, extending FMLA leave of absence

through October 23, 2023.
iv. Retirements/Resignations/Terminations

1. Josephine Beacom, KidVentures Site Assistant, resignation effective 8/23/2023.
2. Patrick Bullard, Mail Delivery Driver, retirement effective 11/10/2023.
3. Danielle Donkers, Special Education EA/PCA at Bridgewater, declined position effective

8/29/2023.

7. Items for Individual Action
a. Superintendent’s Focus Areas 2023-2024. On a motion by Butler, seconded by Miller, the board unanimously

approved Superintendent Dr. Hillmann’s 2023-2024 Focus Areas.

b. Co-Curricular Add. On a motion by Quinnell, seconded by Goerwitz, the board unanimously approved the
addition of an assistant boys cross country coach for the 2023-24 season at an anticipated cost of $4,306
prorated to the number of days worked.

8. Items for Information
a. Right to Read Screening. On Wednesday, September 20 at 6:00 p.m. the Northfield Public Library will host a

screening of the documentary Right to Read, a film about teaching children using the science of reading and as
it related to equity in education. A discussion with Superintendent Hillmann will follow the film.

b. Northfield International Day of Peace. The United Nations International Day of Peace is celebrated annually
around the world on September 21. This year’s Northfield observance and celebration will be held on
Thursday, September 21 at Central Park/Weitz Center. It is sponsored by the Stassen Fund from Carleton
College and Cannon Valley Friends Meeting in collaboration with over 25 local organizations and individuals.
The theme for the 2023 International Day of Peace is Actions for Peace.

9. Future Meetings
a. Monday, September 25, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom
b. Monday, October 9, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom
c. Monday, October 23, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Northfield DO Boardroom

10. Adjournment
On a motion by Stratmoen, seconded by Butler, the board unanimously approved to adjourn at 8:28 p.m.

Amy Goerwitz
School Board Clerk



RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DONATIONS

The following resolution was moved by ________ and seconded by ________:

WHEREAS,Minnesota Statutes 123B.02, Sub. 6 provides: “ The board may receive, for the benefit of the
district, bequests, donations, or gifts for any proper purpose and apply the same to the purpose designated. In
that behalf, the board may act as trustee of any trust created for the benefit of the district, or for the benefit
of pupils thereof, including trusts created to provide pupils of the district with advanced education after
completion of high school, in the advancement of education.”; and

WHEREAS,Minnesota Statutes 465.03 provides: “Any city, county, school district or town may accept a
grant or devise of real or personal property and maintain such property for the benefit of its citizens in
accordance with the terms prescribed by the donor. Nothing herein shall authorize such acceptance or use for
religious or sectarian purposes. Every such acceptance shall be by resolution of the governing body adopted
by a two-thirds majority of its members, expressing such terms in full.”; and

WHEREAS, every such acceptance shall be by resolution of the governing body adopted by a two-thirds
majority of its members, expressing such terms in full;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Northfield Public Schools, ISD 659,
gratefully accepts the following donations as identified below:

The vote on adoption of the Resolution was as follows:

Aye:
Nay:
Absent:

Whereupon, said Resolution was declared duly adopted.

By: Claudia Gonzalez-George, Chair By: Amy Goerwitz, Clerk



Date : Non-monetary item(s) received: (Please list N/A if not applicable) Amount: Who the bequest, donation, or gift is from: (Please list first and last name)What is the bequest, donation, or gift for? 
8/28/23 Sharpies, Pens, Oils Jackie and Mark Vos Office Staff's Amazon Wishlist
8/28/23 School Supplies(Pens, pencils, notebooks, note cards, highlighters, glue sticks, post it notes N/A Preschool
8/30/23 $75.00 Adam Ness GVP Angel Funds

 20 small engine from The Toro Company $1000 value Barry Hentges, The Toro Company Small engines Class CTE  department
8/31/23 Backpack, pencils, crayons, pens, notecards, glue sticks, glue bottles, eraser Alilina Health Clinic Preschool 

8/6/23 Classroom books and supplies $276.25 value Kari Pritchard and Robert Wilder Classroom books and supplies Amazon Wishlist
9/5/23 Gift bags with pop, gatorade, pens, snacks for teachers (75) $375 value Kirsten Antony NMS Teacher Heroes

8/30/23 $8,000.00 Spring Creek PTO Classroom supplies for teachers
8/30/23 $3,795.00 Spring Creek PTO BrainPop subscription
8/21/23 $290.00 Karina Seppala, CMS Home Group/CMS EdeavorsSchool Supply fees donations

9/8/23 Gauze pads (25), Rolled Gauze (5), Clorox wipes (1), Sprite (7.5 ox 6 pack), Travel Secret Deoderant (2), Colgate toothpaste travel size (3), Always Pantiliners (46) $40 value Anonymous per donor request NMS Nurses Office
9/8/23 $939.44 Greenvale Park PTO Student Planners for 4th & 5th Grade
9/8/23 $3,195.68 Greenvale Park PTO Scholastic News
9/8/23 $65.00 Taylor Moyer, GVP student Supplies
9/5/23 Metallic Markers, Wooden 100s chart, magnetic sticks Molly Zant & Family art supplies, math manipulatives, STEM activity

9/11/23 Apple by Nikki McClure Lane Parker & Family Classroom Library
9/11/23 $419.90 Greenvale Park Elementary PTO 5th Grade folders/pens for students
9/11/23 $7,459.00 Greenvale Park Elementary PTO Furniture
8/28/23 $100.00 Naomi Rushing donation to swim team
8/17/23 $13.00 Kathy Tonolli girls volleyball team
8/24/23 $100.00 Stacy Ertz volleyball
8/17/23 $40.00 Scott David Larsen girls swim team

9/8/23 $6.00 cash- unknown football
8/20/23 $300.00 David and Beth Morrell NHS Scholarship fund for Activities
9/19/23 55 $5 Gift Certificates $275 value Content Book Store Prize for Summer Reading Challenge
9/19/23 55 Culvers Free Kids Meal Coupon $275 approximately Culver's Summer Reading Challenge Prizes
9/19/23 Books $275 value Amy Lunderby, HCI Prizes for Summer Reading Challenge
8/21/23 2 Square Registers $1,653.56 value Stacy Waters, Treasurer,Northfield Booster Club, Inc.Electronic payment registers for activities concessions
9/11/23 $25.00 Berit Amundson BW Angel Funds
9/15/23 $100.00 Anonymous per donor request Girls swim team Ames Travel Meet scholarship
8/27/23 $50.00 Sandra Turbes Northfield Activities Scholarship Fund
8/29/23 $100.00 Catherine Fortin Northfield Activities Scholarship Fund

9/5/23 $100.00 Tricia Swedin Northfield Activities Scholarship Fund
9/17/23 $20.00 Michelle Martin Northfield Activities Scholarship Fund

9/7/23 $50.00 Cassie Schwamb Chess Club Donation
9/13/23 $750.00 Matthew Patterson Chess Club Donation

9/1/23 $100.00 Amy Gernon Raider Closet Donation
9/7/23 $20.00 Melissa Eblen-Zayas NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/7/23 $10.00 Jodi Doeden NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/7/23 $10.00 Krystal Quamme NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/7/23 $50.00 Dan Watts NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/7/23 $5.00 Christa Carlson NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/7/23 $10.00 Kari Behrens NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/7/23 $100.00 Allison Thorkelson NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/7/23 $10.00 Katherine Norrie NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/8/23 $25.00 Leah Driscoll NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation

9/11/23 $50.00 Alison Flannery NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/11/23 $20.00 Amanda Altwegg NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/13/23 $10.00 Debra Miller NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/14/23 $20.00 Andrea Peterson NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/15/23 $20.00 Jennifer Paulson NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/15/23 $20.00 Kristin Partlo NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/15/23 $50.00 Jenny Streefland NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/18/23 $20.00 Lahna Tran NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
9/20/23 $20.00 Emily Borgerding NMS PBIS/PRIDE Donation
8/24/23 $10.00 Andrea Redder Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/24/23 $10.00 Victoria Voegele Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/28/23 $10.00 Kari Kust Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/28/23 $10.00 Elizabeth Christensen Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/28/23 $20.00 Samantha Becker Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/29/23 $10.00 Traci Morris Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/29/23 $10.00 Tina Freyberg Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/29/23 $8.00 Melissa Spitzack Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/30/23 $10.00 Karen Moldenhauer Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/30/23 $10.00 Ijilmurun Chuluunbaatar Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/31/23 $8.00 Angel Scroggins Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/31/23 $8.00 Mairin Born Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/31/23 $10.00 Lisa Vander Wal Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
8/31/23 $10.00 Lindsay Tschida Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund

9/1/23 $10.00 Danelle Smith Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/5/23 $10.00 Shaylee Gutowski Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 Courtney Krautkkremer Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 Shianne Borgstahl Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 John Krautkremer Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 Nica Patterson Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 Christa Carlson Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 James Podracky Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 Phil Tiffany Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 Maegen Storm Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/8/23 $10.00 Maren Bahler Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/9/23 $10.00 Kathleen Tait Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund

9/10/23 $10.00 Andrejs Lipins Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/11/23 $10.00 Kelly Webster Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/11/23 $10.00 Katy-Jo Grandahl Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund
9/12/23 $10.00 Brandon Meredith Spring Creek 4th Grade Party Fund









 

 

Pay 2024 Preliminary Levy Certification Narrative | September 25, 2023 
Val Mertesdorf |Director of Finance 
 
What is the levy? What does it do for our District? 
 
We are asking for preliminary certification of the Pay 2024 property tax levy tonight. The levy is the local portion of taxes that 
are authorized, by voters or the state. Our local levy provides approximately 25% of our general fund budget. Our budget 
supports the resources needed – human and capital – to provide quality educational programming for every student in our 
schools. Our preliminary proposed levy is $21,593,365.08, an increase of 2.17% compared to the prior year’s levy. We are 
proposing preliminary certification at the maximum (as we have every year for many years). This provides us with the most 
flexibility prior to finalizing the levy amount in December. 
 
Truth in Taxation Timeline 
 
After we certify this proposed levy, the district will send the information to the county auditor's office by September 30. At 
that point, the county begins preparing tax statements that are mailed to taxpayers in November. We will then hold our Truth 
in Taxation hearing during the regular school board meeting on December 11 and ask the board to finalize certification of the 
Pay 2024 levy. 
 
Tax Levy and Budgeting 
 
The State’s tax year and our budget year don’t match up. The Pay 2024 levy will be collected from January 2024 through 
December 2024. Property taxes are paid in May and October each year. The district’s fiscal year runs from July 2024 - June 
2025. These levy dollars will eventually provide a portion of our funding for that budget year. 
 
Each levy can also include budget adjustments from previous levy years – both positive and negative. These adjustments can 
be made for a period of up to three years.  
 
Preliminary Pay 2024 Property Tax Levy 
 
This pie graph demonstrates (see PowerPoint file, slide five) the different categories that comprise our total preliminary levy. 
The general fund is 83% of the total levy, community education is 2% and debt service is 15%. The general fund includes 
several formulas, but most notably the voter approved operating referendum (40% of total levy), the voter approved capital 
projects levy (9% of total levy), and the other general fund levies (34% of total levy).  
 
The table (next slide) illustrates the subtotals of the levy by fund, by taxation category, and by tax base.  
 
The preliminary general fund levy increase is $2,628,958.32 or 17.26%. The Pay24 levy is the first year of our increased voter 
approved capital projects levy which provides an additional $1,156,488 in operating capital revenue. We also had larger than 
normal adjustments on our voter approved referendum relating to the Pay 21 levy. 
 
The community education levy decrease is $55,209.32 or 12.54%. The 2023 legislative session changed two formulas for 
community education that decreased our local levy and provide the funding via state aid instead. Overall, this is not a decline 
in the amount of revenue for Community Education. 
 
Debt service levies decreased 38.74%. The district paid off a large refunding bond that included various projects such as the 
Middle School and Memorial Field.  
 
 62% of our total levy is generated from voter approved formulas. The Northfield community has been steadfast in their 
commitment to education. 
 
Levy Trends 
 
When we look at the levy over time, the district has been very consistent year over year. The district is intentional in this effort 
to ensure consistency for taxpayers. The average increase over the past five years is 1.55%. We are grateful for the 
community’s generosity and the wonderful opportunities this provides for our students. 



Preliminary Levy Certification
Pay 2024

09.25.2023



What is the levy? What does it do for us?
● Provides 25% of our general 

fund budget
● Provides the revenue to pay 

our debt service obligations
● Includes voter approved levies 

as well as state-authorized 
levies

● Allows the District to provide a 
world-class learning 
environment

2



Truth in Taxation Timeline

3

Send levy 
info to 

County & 
MDE (Sept 

30)

County 
prepares tax 
statements

County mails 
statement to 

taxpayers 
(November)

TNT Meeting, 
Board certifies 
final Pay 2024 
Levy (Dec 11)

County 
prepares 2024 

property tax 
statements



Tax Levy and Budgeting

4

Pay 2024
Levy Year | January 2024 – December 2024

Pay 2024
Budget Year | July 2024 – June 2025

***Pay 2024 includes adjustments from previous years (up to three years)***



5

Debt Service, 
$3,346,396 

Community 
Education, 
$385,123 

Referendum, 
$8,593,945 

Capital Projects 
Levy, $1,906,488 

State Authorized, 
$7,361,413 

General Fund, 
$17,861,846 

2023 Pay 2024 Levy

Debt Service Community Education Referendum Capital Projects Levy State Authorized



6



7



8



Q
ue
st
io
ns
?

9


	5.a DYC Presentation 09.25.2023
	5.b 2023-24 State of the District Presentation 09.25.2023
	6.a 09.11.2023 Regular School Board Minutes 09.25.2023
	6.b Gift Agreements 09.25.2023
	7.a Activities Sponsor Partner Agreement 09.25.2023
	7.b Pay 2024 Preliminary Levy Narrative 09.25.2023
	7.b Pay 2024 Preliminary Levy Presentation 09.25.2023



